

SUNRISE COUNTRY CLUB LADIES' GOLF ASSOCIATION BYLAWS

ARTICLE I

NAME

The group shall be known as "Sunrise Country Club Ladies' Golf Association".

ARTICLE II

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Sunrise Country Club Ladies' Golf Association is to develop a supportive organization while promoting and nurturing interest in women's amateur golf.

PURPOSE

The purpose is to enjoy golf through friendly, organized competition in accordance with the rules of golf adopted by the USGA.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP

SECTION I. Membership allows participation in SCCLGA sponsored events. (See Article III. Section 2 for President's Cup and Club Championship participation.) Membership is open to all members of Sunrise Country Club who have (1) paid current golf dues appropriate to their status, (2) joined the SCGA (see handicap chairperson), and (3) established a USGA Handicap Index by submitting five 18-hole scores from another club or posting five rounds of 18-hole scores played at Sunrise Country Club, thereby, establishing a USGA course handicap. Upon receipt of Ladies' Golf Association Dues, which are annual and non-refundable, membership shall commence in accordance with Article V., Section 21.

SECTION 2. To compete in the President's Cup Tournament, a person must:

1. Be a current SCC annual dues paying golf member and,
2. Be a current member of the Sunrise Country Club Ladies Golf Association (SCCLGA) and,

3. Must have played as an LGA member at least five (5) 18-hole rounds with the LGA in the 12 months prior to the tournament. Tuesday Ladies' Days, Saturday Scrambles, Member/Guest Days and Sunrise Stampede will count towards eligibility. Club Championships, President's Cup and Team Play are excluded.

To compete in the Ladies' Club Championships (including Senior categories), a person must:

1. Be a current SCC annual dues paying golf member and,
2. Be a current member of the Sunrise Country Club Ladies Golf Association (SCCLGA) and,
3. Must have played as an LGA member at least five (5) 18-hole rounds with the LGA in the 12 months prior to the tournament. Tuesday Ladies' Days, Saturday Scrambles, Member/Guest Days and Sunrise Stampede will count towards eligibility. Club Championships, President's Cup and Team Play are excluded.

If, at any time, the requirements of this section are in conflict with the rules of Sunrise Country Club, the rules of the Sunrise Country Club shall prevail.

SECTION 3. (Adopted February 5, 2008) Social Membership is open to past members of SCCLGA. A Social Member may participate in all SCCLGA activities with the exception of voting, holding an office or chairpersonship, and golf events.

ARTICLE IV

MEETINGS

SECTION 1. The General Meetings of the Association shall be held a minimum of six times during the active season, November through May.

SECTION 2. The scheduled March meeting will also be considered the Annual Meeting, at which time new officers for the coming year shall be elected.

SECTION 3. Special Meetings of the Association may be called by the President at any time. All business to be transacted must be specified in the call. Subject of the Special Meeting will be noted at the next General Meeting.

SECTION 4. All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at the call of the President. Attendance of each elected Board Member shall be mandatory at all Board Meetings. Absence of a Board Member from more than two (2) Board Meetings, except an emergency or illness, shall result in dismissal from the Board and replacement made by the Board of Directors.

NOTICES

SECTION 1. Notices of General Meetings shall be printed in the Annual Handbook, hereinafter referred to as "Handbook". Any change to the meeting schedule will be posted and announced on Ladies' Day.

QUORUM

SECTION 1. A quorum at any General Meeting shall consist of one-fourth of the SCCLGA membership.

SECTION 2. A quorum of the Board shall consist of four of the elected Board Members.

ORGANIZATION

SECTION 1. The President, or in the absence of the President, the Vice-President, shall conduct the meetings. In the absence of both President and Vice-President, the Board Members may appoint a Chairperson to act.

VOTING

Section 1. Each SCCLGA member is entitled to one vote with no right of proxy.

ARTICLE V

ASSOCIATION FUND

SECTION 1. The amount of the annual, non-refundable dues shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. Annual dues shall be payable within 30 days of the December 1 billing date. If not paid, a late charge of ten dollars (\$10.00) will be assessed, and member's name will not appear in the LGA Handbook. Dues cover the fiscal year from January 1 to December 31.

SECTION 3. A non-budgeted expenditure in excess of \$300.00 requires a majority vote by the General Membership at a General Meeting where a quorum is present.

ARTICLE VI

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SECTION 1. Members of the Association are entitled one vote with no right of proxy. Voting at Board Meetings shall be restricted to elected Board of Directors. (See ARTICLE VII).

SECTION 2. Installation of officers shall be held in April. New officers shall take office May 1st and shall serve through April 30th the following year.

SECTION 3. The President shall, with the approval of the Board, appoint all chairpersons.

SECTION 4. Any vacancy occurring in any of the offices of the Board shall be filled by the Board of Directors.

SECTION 5. Term of office for Officers and Committee Chair-persons may be held to a maximum of two years.

ARTICLE VII

POWERS & DUTIES OF ELECTED BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PRESIDENT

SECTION 1. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Association and shall be ex-officio member to all committees. She shall have the power to appoint standing and special committees and perform such other duties as pertain to her office, not herein otherwise provided. Her signature, along with that of the Treasurer, will be on the accounts at the bank at which the Association funds are on deposit: however, one signature only will be sufficient on Association checks. At an appropriate time after installation, the President shall meet with the Vice-President and the Tournament Chairperson to schedule events and meetings for the fiscal year, notices of which are to be included in the Handbook calendar.

VICE-PRESIDENT

SECTION 2. She shall assist the President in all her duties and in the absence of the President, the Vice-President shall have the power to perform the duties of the President, subject to the Board of Directors. She shall meet with the President and the Tournament Chairperson to schedule events and meetings for the fiscal year. She shall be responsible for the publishing of the annual Handbook, serve as Assistant Secretary when necessary, and she shall serve as Desert Exchange Chairperson.

SECRETARY

SECTION 3. The Secretary shall keep minutes of all meetings of SCCLGA and conduct its correspondence.

TREASURER

SECTION 4. The Treasurer shall keep full and accurate account of all receipts and disbursements and give regular financial reports. She and the President will prepare a budget for approval at the November Board and General Meetings.

TOURNAMENT CHAIRPERSON

SECTION 5. The Tournament Chairperson shall oversee weekly events and such special events as the Board shall designate. She shall meet with the President and the Vice-President to schedule events and meetings for the fiscal year. She may appoint one or more to assist her in the execution of her duties.

HANDICAP CHAIRPERSON

SECTION 6. The Handicap Chairperson shall be responsible for seeing that every member has a current handicap. She is responsible for checking scorecards and making sure all scores have been posted correctly. The Handicap Chairperson also receives SCGA reports and is responsible for posting appropriate information in the Ladies' lounge. If any dispute arises on handicap matters it shall be referred to the Board of Directors for final adjudication. The Handicap Chairperson will also act as the SCGA Club Delegate. She will handle all communications between the SCGA, the USGA and the SCCLGA. She shall keep SCCLGA members informed of all current issues and upcoming events.

MEMBERSHIP CHAIRPERSON

SECTION 7. The Membership Chairperson shall be responsible for obtaining all pertinent information about a new member (i.e. name, address, GHIN no. etc.). She shall inform the prospective member of the requirements for joining the SCCLGA (dues, handicap, etc.) and assist her in any way. The Membership Chairperson is to see that every member receives the Handbook. She shall keep a current list of all members and post up-dates as needed. She may appoint one or more to assist her in the execution of her duties, subject to the approval of the Board. She shall introduce new members to the Association on Ladies' Day.

ARTICLE VIII

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

SECTION 1. The Board of Directors shall, no later than the February meeting, appoint five members to serve on the Nominating Committee, two of whom shall be members of the Board of Directors.

SECTION 2. The Nominating Committee shall meet within one week of said appointment and elect a chairperson to head their committee. They shall discuss and decide upon the selection of a candidate for each of the elective offices for the following year. Before their final selection, they must have satisfied themselves as to the willingness of each candidate to serve.

SECTION 3. It shall be the chief duty of the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee to file with the Secretary of the Board of Directors a copy of the proposed slate for the coming year, and a copy must be posted by the Secretary on the bulletin board one week before the March meeting.

SECTION 4. At the March General Meeting, the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee shall place in nomination the names of the candidates selected to fill each office. Following this announcement, the President shall call for nominations from the floor. If there are more than one candidate for any office, the election for that office shall be by ballot immediately. If not, the recommendation of the Nominating Committee shall be submitted to a "show of hands" vote.

ARTICLE IX

AMENDMENT OF THE BY-LAWS

SECTION 1. The By-Laws of this Association may be amended or new By-Laws adopted at any General Meeting or Special Meeting called by the President, provided that previous notice has been given and said revision posted on the bulletin board 30 days prior to a General Meeting.

SECTION 2. An aye "show of hands" vote of two-thirds of the quorum shall be necessary for adoption of the amendment.

ARTICLE X

RULES OF ORDER

SECTION 1. In all cases not provided for herein, the SCCLGA shall be governed by a modified Robert's Rules of Order.

ARTICLE XI

SECTION 1. If SCC Ladies' Golf Association rules conflict with Sunrise Country Club, the rules of Sunrise Country Club will prevail.

ARTICLE XII • WORLD HANDICAP SYSTEM

What is Net Double Bogey?

Net Double Bogey is the maximum allowable hole score for handicap purposes.

The procedure is typically applied after the round and before a score is posted.

However, when the format of play allows, or when playing a recreational round, you can pick up once you've reached your Net Double Bogey limit.

Net Double Bogey prevents the occasional bad hole from impacting your Handicap Index too severely.

How is Net Double Bogey calculated?

Net Double Bogey =

Double Bogey +/- any handicap strokes received on a hole (minus applies to plus-handicap players)

If you post hole-by-hole scores, the Net Double Bogey adjustment should be applied automatically.

Can I see an example?

A player with a Course Handicap of 10 can post a maximum hole score of Double Bogey +1 on holes allocated 1 through 10 on the scorecard (denoted with •). The max score on all other holes is Double Bogey.

The player's score of 9 on the 14th hole would be reduced to a 7 for handicap purposes. This is because their Net Double Bogey maximum was **Double Bogey +1**, which on a Par 4 = 7. The score for the competition is 78, but the score for handicap purposes and posting is 77.

**SEE EXAMPLE ON NEXT PAGE BASED ON THE
SUNRISE COUNTRY CLUB SCORECARD.**

Sunrise Country Club Scorecard

Hole	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	OUT
Yardage	241	116	245	291	236	143	285	116	281	1954
Par	4	3	4	4	4	3	4	3	4	33
Stroke Index	11	17	13	1	9	7	3	15	5	
Player A Handicap Stokes				•	•	•	•		•	
Gross Score	4	4	2	5	5	4	4	5	4	37
Net Score	4	4	2	4	4	3	3	5	3	32
Adjusted Gross Score	4	4	2	5	5	4	4	5	4	37

Hole	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	IN
Yardage	189	128	130	258	278	115	289	132	270	1789
Par	3	3	3	4	4	3	4	3	4	31
Stroke Index	4	10	16	12	2	18	8	14	6	
Player A Handicap Stokes	•	•			•		•		•	
Gross Score	4	4	3	5	9	3	4	5	4	41
Net Score	3	4	3	5	8	3	3	5	3	37
Adjusted Gross Score	4	4	3	5	7	3	4	5	4	36

Front Nine Total	37
Back Nine Total	41
18 Hole Total	78
Adjustment for Hole 14	-1
Adjusted Total for Posting	77

What if my Course Handicap is above 18?

If your Course Handicap is between 19 and 36:

Triple Bogey is your baseline – post up to Triple Bogey +1 on holes with stroke index values less than or equal to your Course Handicap – 18.

If your Course Handicap is between 37 and 54:

Quadruple Bogey is your baseline – post up to Quadruple Bogey +1 on holes with stroke index values less than or equal to your Course Handicap – 36.

**FOR MORE INFORMATION OR TO LEARN MORE
ABOUT THE WHS, VISIT USGA.ORG/WHS**

WORLD HANDICAP SYSTEM

USGA

SUNRISE COUNTRY CLUB WOMEN'S - GOLD TEES

Course Handicap Table
from the Southern California Golf Association

Course Rating™ 59.3 - Slope Rating®: 95 - Par: 64

HANDICAP INDEX	COURSE HANDICAP
5.0 to 6.1	0
6.2 to 7.3	1
7.4 to 8.5	2
8.6 to 9.7	3
9.8 to 10.9	4
11.0 to 12.1	5
12.2 to 13.3	6
13.4 to 14.5	7
14.6 to 15.7	8
15.8 to 16.8	9
16.9 to 18.0	10
18.1 to 19.2	11
19.3 to 20.4	12
20.5 to 21.6	13
21.7 to 22.8	14
22.9 to 24.0	15
24.1 to 25.2	16
25.3 to 26.4	17
26.5 to 27.5	18
27.6 to 28.7	19
28.8 to 29.9	20

HANDICAP INDEX	COURSE HANDICAP
30.0 to 31.1	21
31.2 to 32.3	22
32.4 to 33.5	23
33.6 to 34.7	24
34.8 to 35.9	25
36.0 to 37.1	26
37.2 to 38.3	27
38.4 to 39.4	28
39.5 to 40.6	29
40.7 to 41.8	30
41.9 to 43.0	31
43.1 to 44.2	32
44.3 to 45.4	33
45.5 to 46.6	34
46.7 to 47.8	35
47.9 to 49.0	36
49.1 to 50.1	37
50.2 to 51.3	38

***Please consult the golf shop
if your index falls outside of
these parameters.***

SUNRISE COUNTRY CLUB WOMEN'S - WHITE TEES

Course Handicap Table
from the Southern California Golf Association

Course Rating™ 60.4 - Slope Rating®: 98 - Par: 64

HANDICAP INDEX	COURSE HANDICAP
3.6 to 4.7	0
4.8 to 5.8	1
5.9 to 7.0	2
7.1 to 8.1	3
8.2 to 9.3	4
9.4 to 10.4	5
10.5 to 11.6	6
11.7 to 12.7	7
12.8 to 13.9	8
14.0 to 15.1	9
15.2 to 16.2	10
16.3 to 17.4	11
17.5 to 18.5	12
18.6 to 19.7	13
19.8 to 20.8	14
20.9 to 22.0	15
22.1 to 23.1	16
23.2 to 24.3	17
24.4 to 25.4	18
25.5 to 26.6	19
26.7 to 27.7	20

HANDICAP INDEX	COURSE HANDICAP
27.8 to 28.9	21
29.0 to 30.0	22
30.1 to 31.2	23
31.3 to 32.4	24
32.5 to 33.5	25
33.6 to 34.7	26
34.8 to 35.8	27
35.9 to 37.0	28
37.1 to 38.1	29
38.2 to 39.3	30
39.4 to 40.4	31
40.5 to 41.6	32
41.7 to 42.7	33
42.8 to 43.9	34
44.0 to 45.0	35
45.1 to 46.2	36
46.3 to 47.3	37
47.4 to 48.5	38

***Please consult the golf shop
if your index falls outside of
these parameters.***

SUNRISE COUNTRY CLUB WOMEN'S - BLUE TEES

Course Handicap Table
from the Southern California Golf Association

Course Rating™ 60.7 - Slope Rating®: 99 - Par: 64

HANDICAP INDEX	COURSE HANDICAP
3.2 to 4.3	0
4.4 to 5.4	1
5.5 to 6.6	2
6.7 to 7.7	3
7.8 to 8.9	4
9.0 to 10.0	5
10.1 to 11.1	6
11.2 to 12.3	7
12.4 to 13.4	8
13.5 to 14.6	9
14.7 to 15.7	10
15.8 to 16.8	11
16.9 to 18.0	12
18.1 to 19.1	13
19.2 to 20.3	14
20.4 to 21.4	15
21.5 to 22.5	16
22.6 to 23.7	17
23.8 to 24.8	18
24.9 to 26.0	19
26.1 to 27.1	20

HANDICAP INDEX	COURSE HANDICAP
27.2 to 28.3	21
28.4 to 29.4	22
29.5 to 30.5	23
30.6 to 31.7	24
31.8 to 32.8	25
32.9 to 34.0	26
34.1 to 35.1	27
35.2 to 36.2	28
36.3 to 37.4	29
37.5 to 38.5	30
38.6 to 39.7	31
39.8 to 40.8	32
40.9 to 42.0	33
42.1 to 43.1	34
43.2 to 44.2	35
44.3 to 45.4	36
45.5 to 46.5	37
46.6 to 47.7	38

***Please consult the golf shop
if your index falls outside of
these parameters.***

STANDING RULES

DUTIES OF ELECTED BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND APPOINTED CHAIRPERSONS

These may be repealed or amended by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors.

DUTIES OF THE APPOINTED CHAIRPERSON

SECTION 1: HOSPITALITY CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Welcome Back Event.
- b. Tuesday Ladies' Day lunch menu.
- c. April Board Appreciation Luncheon.
- d. Get well cards.
- e. Sympathy cards to member or member's spouse to include a \$25 donation to the Heritage fund in their name from the LGA.

SECTION 2: NEWSLETTER CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Compiling a monthly newsletter consisting of news and events about members, the rule of the month, and proper golf etiquette.
- b. Making extra copies of the Newsletter available in the Ladies Lounge.
- c. Arranging with the SCCLGA internet liaison to make the newsletter available via email and online at the SCCLGA website.

SECTION 3: RULES CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Providing educational classes for members about rules, dress, and golf etiquette.
- b. Providing answers, as needed, to questions regarding rules, dress, and golf etiquette.
- c. Displaying a monthly rule description, also known as "Potty Ponders".

SECTION 4: TROPHY CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Purchasing, distributing, and engraving prizes for the President's Cup, Club Championship, Senior Club Championship, Spirit Award and any others requested by the Board.
- b. Applying and attaching nameplates to trophies, framed photographs and plaques.
- c. Working in close cooperation with the Tournament Chairperson.
- d. Appointing an assistant, if need be, with the Board's approval.
- e. Communicating directly with tournament winners to ensure completion of award in a timely manner.
- f. Making a copy of all vendor invoices for Trophy Chair binder. Give original invoice to Treasurer.

SECTION 5: EVENT PHOTOGRAPHER CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Responsible for taking pictures of special events, tournaments, and winners. Provide digital images to Newsletter Chair.

SECTION 6: TEAM PLAY CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Determining eligibility of SCCLGA's members to participate
 1. Eligibility for the following Team Play year shall be based on each player's handicap as of October 1st.
 2. Informing members of their eligibility and having them register to play.
- b. Coordinating matches with other involved clubs.
- c. Coordinating Team Play schedules with SCC office, SCCLGA's President, Vice-President, and Tournament Chairperson.
- d. Hosting the play at Sunrise Country Club.
- e. Working with the SCC office to provide and deliver checks for payment when playing away clubs.

SECTION 7: MEMBER/GUEST, SUNRISE STAMPEDE COORDINATOR

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Meeting with the chairperson of the event in sufficient time before the event to discuss overall procedures and to give her the Guest Day Book for her particular event.
- b. Providing her with a copy of the guidelines and a checklist to get started.

- c. Reviewing the event's entry form prior to its publication to be sure all of the necessary information is included.
- d. Assisting and guiding whenever necessary or requested

SECTION 8: BULLETIN BOARD CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Keeping the Bulletin Board in the Ladies' Lounge neat and attractive by changing the theme and colors approximately 4 times a year and using tags to identify certain information areas such as, Board of Directors, Treasurer's Report, Secretary's minutes, Handicap detail, SCGA rules, Member/Guest, Golf Lessons/Clinics, etc.
- b. Keeping the information on the Bulletin Board current.

SECTION 9: PUBLICATIONS CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Create the annual Ladies Handbook with information provided by the Vice President including By Law changes, handbook changes, calendar events and dates.
- b. Oversee printing and delivery of Ladies Handbook.

SECTION 10: INTERNET LIASION

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Keep the eBlast mailing list current in coordination with the Publications Chair, Membership Chair, President and the SCC Administration.
- b. Distribute all approved LGA electronic messages to membership via eBlast, text or other appropriate technology.
- c. Keep the LGA website content current.
- d. Assist with other technologies as requested.

DUTIES OF COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSONS

SECTION 1: GUEST DAY CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Using the "Ladies' Day Member/Guest Procedures" booklet as a guideline for this tournament.
- b. Choosing a committee.
- c. Arranging food service with the Club House Manager.

- d. Balancing the budget for the event.
- e. Preparing entry forms and format sheets.
- f. Arranging for prizes, decorations, guest list for gate.
- g. Monitoring list of participants: If a member must drop out of a foursome and is unable to replace herself with a substitute of her choosing from the list of available alternates turned into the Pro Shop, the chairperson will replace the foursome with the next foursome on the alternate listing.
- h. Checking with the Member/Guest Coordinator as needed.

SECTION 2: SUNRISE STAMPEDE TOURNAMENT CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Using the “Ladies’ Day Member/Guest procedures” booklet as a guideline for this tournament.
- b. Adhering to the “Guest Day Chairperson’s responsibilities” as seen in Section 1 of the “Duties of Committee Chairpersons”.
- c. Creating an annual Western theme golf tournament and encouraging all Ladies’ Club members to invite a male or female SCC member to play golf.
- d. Arranging for the afternoon Pony Race.
- e. Organizing the Western style banquet and dancing for the evening which would include contracting a band which specializes in western music.
- f. Informing all participants that Western attire may be worn for all events.

SECTION 3: NOMINATING COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON

Responsibilities include the following:

- a. Adhering to the SCCLGA By-Laws – Article VIII – “Election of Officers”.

MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION

SECTION 1: HOLE-IN-ONE PROGRAM

The LGA has established a Hole-in-One program that is voluntary, self-funded and operates on a year round basis. The award given by the LGA is administered by the LGA during the golf season from November 1 through April 30. The beverage fund is administered for the LGA by the Sunrise Country Club management on a year-round basis.

Eligibility: The Hole in One must be made during an 18-hole round played at Sunrise and with at least one golf partner who witnessed the feat.

The scorecard must be dated, signed by the golfing partner who witnessed the hole in one and presented to the golf pro on duty.

A Hole in One during Executive Team play at Sunrise or another participating course will be eligible for the awards.

Awards: A Hole-in-One charm will be awarded to an LGA member if achieved during an LGA or SCC sponsored event (Ladies' Day golf, LGA tournaments, Team Play, Saturday Scrambles, SCC tournaments, Twilight Golf events, etc.). A Hole-in-One charm will be presented to the LGA member at the next General meeting after the Hole-in-One is made. If she already possesses a Hole-in-One charm, a diamond chip will be added to the charm.

Insurance: All beverage fund participants (LGA members who have signed up for the Hole-in-One Insurance program through the SCC HOA office) are entitled to a free well drink, beer or house wine at the Club within the two week period following the event.

In the event the beverage fund needs replenishing, the LGA Treasurer will instruct the HOA management staff to assess the LGA members in the insurance program \$25 on their next SCC bill.

SECTION 2: GUESTS ON TUESDAY LADIES' GOLF DAY & LADIES' SATURDAY GOLF & BREAKFAST

- a. Hostess or guest will pay green fee.
- b. Guest may participate in the day's game as long as she has a current established handicap. Member's account will be charged for her guest's Ladies' Day fee and she will receive credit for any sweeps earned by her guest.
- c. A resident who is not a member of the SCCLGA may play as a guest up to 4 times a year, including Saturday breakfasts.
- d. A resident who has not paid current SCC dues is not eligible to play in the regular Ladies' Day Tournaments on Tuesdays but may play in a Ladies' Member/Guest Golf Tournament as a guest if she has a current established handicap.
- e. If an SCCLGA member is having a guest on Tuesday, she must notify the Ladies' Tournament Chairperson at least one day in advance.

SECTION 3: PROCEDURES FOR MEMBER/GUEST TOURNAMENTS

- a. Details of these events, in regard to golf procedures only, shall be determined by the SCC Pro Shop and Chairperson of the event. Any changes in tourna-

ment procedures, including the entry fee, are subject to the Board of Directors' approval.

- b. The Chairperson of the event shall select the number of committee members she believes are necessary for a successful event. They must be members of SCCLGA. She may have additional assistants to help with check-in, carrying bags and other special tasks.
- c. To be eligible to participate in a Member/Guest Golf Tournament, each member must have paid current golf dues appropriate to her status to SCC, paid SCCLGA's dues, and have a current established index.
- d. If at any time, the requirements of this section concerning the payment of dues are in conflict with the rules of SCC, the rules of SCC will prevail.
- e. Any lady who plays in the Member/Guest must pay the entry fee even if she is a last-minute substitute.
- f. Entry forms are to be submitted to the Pro Shop in foursomes prior to the deadline date indicated on the entry form. All entry forms must include a sanctioned index number of the member and guest and the guest's club. Any entry form submitted without a valid index number of the guest will be rejected by the Pro Shop. Anyone who does not have a USGA recognized handicap index will not be permitted to participate as a guest. The entry fee will be charged to the member's country club account.
- g. The pro shop and Member/Guest Chairperson will assist a member in finding a partner and/or guest.
- h. The playing field shall consist of the first 29 foursome entry forms properly submitted to the pro shop. Those submitted after a full field of 29 will be alternates in the order they were submitted and will be included in that order if there are cancellations.
- i. Any entry forms submitted to the pro shop after the deadline date may be included, provided the field is not full, starting with the entry form received closest to the deadline date. Late entries not included in the current tournament will not be accorded automatic inclusion in the next Guest Day.
- j. No refunds will be made after the deadline date for cancellation unless an alternate member is chosen.
- k. Awards shall be presented in not more than four (4) flights and shall consist of at least 1st and 2nd net.
- l. Each chairperson of the event and committee members will be automatically included in the event.

- m. The cost of lunches for the President, Photographer, and Chairperson will be included in the event's budget. If, however, these members choose to play, the cost of their lunches will be included in their entry fee.
- n. If a committee member chooses not to play, she must pay for her lunch. If a committee member chooses to play, the cost of her lunch is included in the entry fee.

SECTION 4: SUMMER SEASON

- a. The LGA regular golf season begins in November and ends the last Tuesday in April, at which time year-end awards are presented. The Summer Season begins the first Tuesday in May and ends when the course closes for overseeding in September or October. The fee for new members joining in November or December is \$25.

SECTION 5: LADIES' DRESS CODE

- a. Appropriate golfing attire shall be worn at all times. Skirts and shorts with mid-thigh length or lower are allowed. Strapless tops, halters, tops with less than 1 ½ inch straps, tennis shorts, swim suits, and blue jeans are not permitted. No shoes with spikes, flip-flops, or high heels are permitted. The SCCLGA will defer to the SCC dress code.

SECTION 6: HANDBOOK

- a. If a handbook is lost or damaged, members will be charged a \$10.00 (ten dollar) replacement fee for an additional handbook (while supplies last).

SEASON GOLF GAMES

1 BB - Each player plays her own ball. Choose the best net and gross scores on each hole for the team score. The same ball can be used for gross and net.

2 BB - Each player plays her own ball. Choose the best two net and gross scores on each hole for the team score. The same ball can be used for gross and net.

BEAT THE PRO - Each golfer plays her own ball. She wins if her net score is lower than or equal to the pro's gross score.

BEST DRIVE - All players drive. The best drive is selected and players play their own ball into the hole. Handicaps determine from which B/W/Y tee players hit. Pro will determine the minimum or a maximum number of drives per player.